Public Document Pack

) Brent

Highways Committee

Tuesday 16 July 2013 at 7.00 pm
Boardroom - Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley,
HA9 OFJ

Membership:

Members alternates
Councillors: Councillors:
J Moher (Chair) Butt
Mashari (Vice-Chair) Crane

A Choudry Hirani
Denselow R Moher
McLennan Pavey

For further information contact: Joe Kwateng, Democratic Services Officer
020 8937 1354, joe.kwateng@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the
minutes of this meeting have been published visit www.brent.gov.uk/committees

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting

(vrecycle

for Brent




Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members

Item

1

Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda.

Minutes of the previous meeting

Matters arising (if any)

Deputations (if any)

Petitions

Crossrail / HS2 / Old Oak Common planning update

This report informs the Committee about the progress made by the
Boroughs of Brent, Ealing, Hammersmith & Fulham and Kensington &
Chelsea regarding the Old Oak Common Opportunity Area Planning
Framework (OAPF). A working group has been set up to deliver a
framework for delivering sustainable development in the OIld Oak
Common area associated with Crossrail and HS2. This report outlines
progress in producing the OAPF document which will be the subject of
wider public consultation running from 25 June until 4 September 2013.

Ward Affected: All Wards Contact Officer: Paul Chandler, Head
of Transportation

Tel: 020 8937 5151
paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk
Sudbury and Harrow Road Bus Stop Petition

This report responds to a petition signed by a group of 235 residents in
Sudbury asking for the restoration of a bus stop/stand at 786 Harrow
Road, opposite Sudbury and Harrow Road station, which was removed as
part of a major improvement scheme. The full text of the petition is set
out in the accompanying report.

Page

15-22



10

Ward Affected: Sudbury Contact Officer: Paul Chandler, Head
of Transportation

Tel: 020 8937 5151
paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk

Wembley High Road - Business Petition to remove CCTV
enforcement

This report informs the Committee of a petition received from local
businesses in the vicinity of the former Greyhound Public House on
Harrow Road, Wembley, requesting the removal of a CCTV enforcement
camera situated between Jesmond Avenue and Clifton Avenue. The full
text of the petition is set out in the report.

Ward Affected: Tokyngton; Contact Officer: Paul Chandler, Head
Wembley of Transportation
Central

Tel: 020 8937 5151
paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk

Improvement of vehicular and pedestrian signage in the Wembley
area

This report informs the Committee of proposals from Quntain Estates and
Developments (Quintain) to fund the renewal and replacement of
directional signage on the approach routes to the new London Designer
Outlet, opening in October 2013. The report also provides information on
proposals to improve both vehicular and directional signage on the
strategic routes to and also in the Wembley Regeneration area and
informs members of Quintain’s proposals and application to Transport for
London (TfL) for renewing signage on the A406 North Circular Road,
which forms part of their Transport for London Road Network (TLRN).

Ward Affected: Barnhill; Contact Officer: Paul Chandler, Head
Preston; of Transportation
Tokyngton;
Welsh Harp;
Wembley
Central

Tel: 020 8937 5151
paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk
Any Other Urgent Business

Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to
the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 64.

3

23 -32

33 - 44



11

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Highways Committee is scheduled for Thursday,
10 October 2013

Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting.

e The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for
members of the public.

e Toilets are available on the second floor.

e Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near The Paul Daisley
Hall.

¢ A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the
Porters’ Lodge




Agenda ltem 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

MINUTES OF THE HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 12 March 2013 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT: Councillor J Moher (Chair), Councillor Powney (Vice-Chair) and Councillors
Beswick, Jones and Long

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests
None.

2. Minutes of the previous meeting
RESOLVED:-

that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 7 February 2013 be approved as
an accurate record of the meeting.

3. Matters arising
Scrubbs Lane Bridge

Members sought an update on the strengthening of Scrubbs Lane bridge. Paul
Chandler, Head of Transportation responded that the London Bridge Engineering
Group (LoBEG), were currently reviewing priorities and that the scheme may
potentially be included in a future programme. He noted that Network Rail railway
line possession lead times could take years so there was unlikely to be a short to
medium term solution even if the strengthening work was prioritised.

4. Deputations
Harlesden Town Centre

Mr David O’'Shea on behalf of Brent Association Disabled People (BADP) stated
that despite two meetings held between representatives of BADP and Officers,
BADP felt that their concerns had not been addressed. He added that pavements
and roads were still a danger to pedestrian safety as cars could easily mount over
the 25mm distance between roads and pavements. Mr O’'Shea continued that
examples submitted by officers of Oxford Street were not comparable to the
problems likely to be faced by disabled persons in the Harlesden area, suggesting
as an alternative comparison with the Lambeth area where a 20 mph speed limit
was in operation.

Page 1



Kilburn and Queens Park CPZ, KD.

Mr David Evans, on behalf of the Queens Park Area Residents’ Association
welcomed the allocation of funds for the review and consultation on the removal of
Bank Holiday restrictions in the KD controlled parking zone. He urged officers to
carry out the review as efficiently as possible.

5. Parking and waiting restrictions review programme 2013-14

The report from the Head of Transportation sought the approval of the Committee
to deliver a programme of parking and waiting restriction reviews during 2013/14
utilising Local Implementation Plan (LIP) funds allocated during that financial year.
Paul Chandler, Head of Transportation advised the Committee that the Council had
secured an infrastructure improvement fund of £60,000 for “site specific waiting and
loading restriction reviews”. He clarified that the fund was for the purpose of
investigating the need for, and delivering where appropriate, new or existing waiting
and loading restrictions where problems had been identified.

He sought members’ approval to the proposal to allocate 33% of the fund
(£20,000), for reviewing parking related schemes within CPZ areas, with the
remaining 66%, (£40,000) being used to investigate and implement site-specific
changes to parking and loading restrictions. He continued that initially, £9,000
would be spent on investigation and consultation and £11,000 would then be
available to implement one or more of the proposed zone changes, subject to
consultation outcomes and budget estimates for required Traffic Management
Order (TMO) changes and physical works (signage changes).

RESOLVED:

(i) that the proposed parking and waiting restrictions review programme for
2013/14 be approved.

(i) that a 2013/14 LIP capital funding allocation of £60,000 be used to
investigate and amend parking and waiting restrictions listed in the
programme.

(iii)  that the £60,000 budget be allocated as follows;
e £40,000 to investigate and implement short sections of waiting and
loading restrictions (SSWR) borough wide; and
e £20,000 to review parking waiting and loading restrictions in controlled
parking zone areas.

(iv) that delegated authority be granted to the Head of Transportation to consider
objections and representations to statutory and other consultations
undertaken on schemes within the works programme, to report back to the
Committee if those objections are substantial, but otherwise to implement the
schemes with minor modifications, if appropriate.

Highways Committee - 12 March 2013 Page 2



6. Harlesden town centre - major scheme project update

Members considered a progress report on the Harlesden Town Centre Scheme
including outcomes of the accessibility audit and the provision of a pedestrian
phase at the Station Road/Tubbs Road signalised junction.

Paul Chandler, Head of Transportation reported that an accessibility audit had been
carried out by an independent accessibility consultant, and that two workshops had
been held with local disability groups. A summary of the outcomes was attached as
appendices to the report. He continued that one of the main concerns from the blind
and partially sighted groups during the consultation related to the provision of a
flush (flat) surface in the semi pedestrianised area, with no raised kerb provided
between vehicular and pedestrian areas.

The Head of Transportation continued that in view of the positive feedback received
from disability groups regarding a 50mm height kerb in schemes around the
country, the design team proposed to introduce a 50mm high kerb. This was
considered to be a reasonable compromise between the aspirations of the scheme
to provide the feel of a shared space area and the needs of the disability groups.

He then reported on detailed design issues relating to Tubbs Road/Station Road
junction and concluded that the significant increases in traffic queues that were
predicted on an already over saturated junction coupled with the fact that there had
been no collisions involving pedestrians in the last 3 years meant that a pedestrian
phase could not be justified at this location. He therefore recommended the
retention of the existing traffic signals.

In welcoming the report, most members agreed that the proposal to introduce a
50mm high kerb was a reasonable compromise and that the recommendation to
retain the existing traffic signals in Tubbs Road/Station Road junction would prevent
significant increases in traffic queues. Councillor Long wondered how enforcement
of loading and unloading provisions would be carried out in a pedestrianized zone.
She also felt that a kerb height of 60mm would have been satisfactory for guide
dogs for the blind and enquired as to when the equality impact assessment would
be made available.

The Head of Transportation clarified that private motor vehicles would not be
allowed in the pedestrianized area and that camera enforcement would be applied.
He added that the equality impact assessment would be completed following the
completion of the design process.

RESOLVED:

(i) that the progress on developing the Harlesden Town Centre scheme be
noted;

(i) that the amendments to the scheme set out in paragraph 7.1 of the report

following the initial detailed design phase and as a result of the outcomes of
an accessibility audit and workshops with disability groups be noted;

Highways Committee - 12 March 2013 Page 3



(i)  that the introduction of a pedestrian phase at the Station Road/Tubbs Road
junction should not proceed with;

(iv)  that regular update meetings be undertaken with ward councillors during the
implementation phase of the project to keep them informed of its progress.

Note: Councillor Long asked that her dissent against the above decisions (i-iii) be
recorded.

7. Transportation capital schemes programme 20013/14

The Committee received a report which informed of the Executive decision to
approve the 2013-14 capital schemes programme and how Brent's capital budget
of £3.5million should be allocated through a prioritised programme.

Paul Chandler, Head of Transportation, clarified that the prioritised programme
would involve major footway improvements (long section) of £1.525m (44%);
footway improvements (short sections) of £150,000 (4%) and public realm
improvements £125,000 being 3% of the budget provisions. In addition to the
above, he recommended £1.6million to be allocated on carriageways as follows;
£1.3 million (37%) to improve the condition of the unclassified network; £150k (4%)
be allocated for Class B and C road improvements and a further £150k (4%) to
resurface shorter sections of road throughout the Borough where there are on-
going maintenance requirements identified by highway safety inspectors. Members
heard that in order to improve the condition of Brent's A Roads, Transport for
London (TfL) had allocated £724.000, which was prioritised on the basis of a
London-wide condition survey.

RESOLVED:
that the decision by the Executive to approve the Brent funded highways capital
programme for 2013/14 of £3.5 million as set out in appendices to the report from
the Head of Transportation be noted.

8. Any Other Urgent Business
Councillor Lincoln Beswick
Councillor Beswick informed the Committee that this was his last meeting of the
Highways Committee as he would not be a member of the Executive as from
municipal year 2013-14.
On behalf of the Committee, the Chair expressed appreciation for Councillor

Beswick’s long service as a key member of the Executive and Highways
Committee.

Highways Committee - 12 March 2013 Page 4



9. Date of Next Meeting
The date of next meeting will be confirmed after the Council’s Annual Meeting on
Wednesday, 15 May 2013.

The meeting closed at 7.45 pm

J MOHER
Chair

Highways Committee - 12 March 2013 Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda ltem 6

Highways Committee

r@ Brent 16 July 2013

J Report from the Head of
Transportation

For Information Wards Affected:
All

Crossrail / HS2 / Old Oak Common Planning update

Forward Plan Ref:

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

Summary

This report informs the Committee about the progress made by the Boroughs of
Brent, Ealing, Hammersmith & Fulham and Kensington & Chelsea regarding the Old
Oak Common Opportunity Area Planning Framework. A working group has been
set up to deliver a framework for delivering sustainable development in the Old Oak
Common area associated with Crossrail and HS2. This report outlines progress in
producing the OAPF document which will be the subject of wider public consultation
running from 25 June until 4 September 2013.

Recommendations

That the Committee notes the key issues and summary of progress on the Old Oak
Common Opportunity Area Planning Framework. Any comments on the OAPF can
be fed into the consultation process due to take place in July/August 2013.

That the Committee agrees the consultative priorities for Brent relating to highway
issues for the Old Oak Common Area Planning Framework, which include:
a) Ensure that this development is well connected with high levels of permeability

and strong connections to Brent;

b) Promote Overground links to support improved connectivity;

c) Promote and lobby for a West Coast Main Line - Crossrail link.

d) Promote a high quality pedestrian/cycle bridge from Willesden Junction into the
development area.

e) Ensure good highway links (particularly for bus access) from Brent to Park Royal
City without encouraging more through traffic.

f) Minimise construction impact and work to ensure that construction traffic is not
routed through Brent (particularly the Harlesden area).

Page 7



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Background

The development of the two largest pieces of transport infrastructure currently
underway or planned in the UK (HS2 and Crossrail) provide the opportunity to
develop a transport interchange facility which will also provide the catalyst for
significant new development.

The HS2 line will stop at Old Oak Common on its way into Euston, and being built
into the designs and construction of Crossrail is a station at the same site. Known
as Old Oak Common Station, it will have unprecedented links to Europe, central
London and the rest of the UK, and will be one of the country’s largest interchanges.
It will also provide a platform for vastly improved connections to local communities
in Brent, and the other neighbouring Boroughs.

Figure 1 in Appendix A shows the alignment of the two proposed new rail lines and
the development opportunity afforded at Old Oak Common

Development Strategy

An Opportunity Area Planning Framework (OAPF) was set up to deliver the
economic opportunity presented by the HS2 interchange. The draft OAPF outlines a
30 year vision for Park Royal City, which will capitalise on links to the Grand Union
Canal and Wormwood Scrubs, creating a vibrant place where businesses want to
locate and where people wish to live. Larger than Canary Wharf or the Olympic
Park, the core area comprises 185 hectares of land, whilst the wider opportunity
area comprises almost 10 square kilometres. The City will provide 19,000 new
homes, and up to 100,000 jobs making it the largest contributor of any opportunity
area towards employment provision and the third largest contributor of any
opportunity area towards London’s homes target.

Development of the land surrounding the interchange hub will transform an area
previously cut off from the rest of London by railways and viaducts and be the
catalyst for the regeneration of the wider area. Officers are working to ensure that
economic benefits are brought to local centres such as Harlesden, as well as
supporting connections into Brent, such as Wembley.

To facilitate the re-development of the area, some of the industrial uses will be re-
located from immediate area (waste facilities etc.), and enhanced industrial uses will
be located in rest of Park Royal. Eventually rail sidings and maintenance facilities
will be relocated from the station environs to enable further development to take
place.

In order to deliver this vision, the Mayor and the Boroughs are exploring the
potential of establishing a Mayoral Development Corporation.

Page 8



4.5

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

The strategy is based on delivering the land use strategy by working as much as
possible with existing land ownerships in order to minimise compulsory purchase
requirements and create deliverable development plots. A substantial amount of
land in Park Royal City is in public ownership — this will be beneficial to the delivery
of this plan.

Transport Strategy

It will be important that the initial development is linked to Willesden Junction. The
importance of a green bridge to provide for pedestrian and cycle access between
Willesden Junction and Old Oak Common has been incorporated into the transport
strategy. This will ensure good connection from Harlesden into the new station.

Options are also being investigated for improved Overground rail connections.
These include routing Overground trains from Richmond and Clapham Junction to
the Park Royal City interchange, or an option to construct a new Overground station
on the Richmond branch of the North London line with Clapham trains interchanging
at Park Royal City. The North London Overground line would be diverted to serve
Park Royal City.

A new spur on Crossrail up onto the West Coast Mainline will enhance Wembley’s
accessibility to the national rail network, central London and Heathrow. This link is
important in seeking to attract inward investment to Wembley.

Work has been undertaken by HS2 on two alignments — one via the Dudding Hill
freight line, the other via a tunnel from Old Oak Common under Park Royal and
joining the West Coast Mainline near Stonebridge. Although the option via the
Dudding Hill freight line is cheaper and thus has the better benefit-cost ratio, it has a
tighter curve which impacts on journey times. Therefore the tunnel option is
preferred by HS2 and Brent Council supports this option.

Figure 2 in Appendix A shows the alignment of the Crossrail - WCML link and
Figure 3 shows how this interfaces with changes to the North London Line and the
West London Line to provide better connectivity into the station hub.

At the present time it is not proposed by HS2 that the Hybrid Bill necessary to
achieve Parliamentary approval will include the Crossrail WCML link but, rather that
this be brought forward through a Transport and Works Act application process. It
would be sensible therefore, to help ensure that Brent benefits to the maximum from
the proposed Old Oak Common interchange, for the council, together with other
authorities who will benefit such as Harrow and Watford, to petition for the Hybrid
Bill to include the Crossrail - WCML link

Although most new journeys will be made by public transport, new strategic road

links will also be required to ensure that the area does not suffer adversely from
traffic congestion. In addition to a lack of local roads and connections between

Page 9



5.8

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

9.0

9.1

areas, existing roads are at capacity in many places and suffer from congestion,
particularly when accessing the A40. It is therefore important that those who do not
access the site by rail use alternative modes such as buses and cycling, avoiding
the use of private cars, as much as possible.

In addition to providing new infrastructure at a multi modal interchange at the new
station for buses, taxis and bicycles, additional connections need to be provided to
allow through running of bus services and strategic cycle routes to the station and
beyond. Direct connections for those walking between stations and the surrounding
development will be achieved by creating a simple, structured local network of
streets.

What is Brent doing?

Brent Council is pursuing a number of key issues and working with the Opportunity
Area Planning Framework working group to:

g) Ensure that this development on our borough boundary is well connected with
high levels of permeability and strong connections to Brent;

h) Promote Overground links to support improved connectivity;

i) Promote the West Coast Main Line - Crossrail link - council officers are in
discussion with neighbouring Boroughs, including Harrow and Watford to lobby
for this link.

j) Promote a high quality pedestrian/cycle bridge from Willesden Junction into the
development area.

k) Ensure good highway links (particularly for bus access) from Brent to Park Royal
City without encouraging more through traffic.

I) Minimise construction impact - officers are working to ensure that construction
traffic is not routed through Brent. Harlesden has been affected by Crossralil
lorries during its construction and we would wish to ensure that this is not the
case with the construction of the Park Royal City station interchange.

Financial Implications

There are no cost implications arising from this information report
Legal Implications

There are no legal implications arising from this information report.
Diversity Implications

There are no equalities implications arising from this report. However, an
assessment will be carried out on a scheme by scheme basis as the roll-out of the
OAPF progresses.

Background Papers

Page 10



Park Royal City — The Regeneration of Old Oak Common. Draft Opportunity Area
Planning Framework for Consultation, March 2013 .

Contact Officers
Steve Salter — Transport Strategy Manager, Planning & Development, 4th Floor

West, Brent House, 349-357 High Road, Wembley, Middlesex, HA9 6BZ.
Telephone: 020 8937 5310. Email: steven.salter@brent.gov.uk

David Jowsey — Principal Transport Planner, Planning & Development, 4th Floor
West, Brent House, 349-357 High Road, Wembley, Middlesex, HA9 6BZ.
Telephone: 020 8937 1416. Email: david jowsey@brent.gov.uk

Page 11



Appendix A

Figure 1 — Crossrail and HS2 lines

*
.
. ‘o
ss-Chcklewood -
Upper Hollowdy *
(o4
o*
. wO =On*
e 4
Q 0'0

00"

Camden Road

Evston

o) CourtRoad
tton Shepherd's Bush
Centra .
- oo
3
°

-
Q.Vc\( Brompton
o

-
.

*w - >
Heathrow TS

>
5 o Clapham Junction
Hounslow O Richmend

O.onrw

HS2 line

Crossrail line

Potential Crossrail-WCML link

London Overground

Other Passenger lines

Other lines
E===20 00C HS2 station (sub-surface)
B 00C Crossrail station (surface)

Dashed denotes line underground




Figure 3 — Alignment of improved London Overground connections

HS2 line

Crossrail line

Overground potential links

Other Passenger lines

Other lines
=== 00C HS2 station (sub-surface)
@ 00C Crossrail station (surface)
== Potential Overground station

Dashed denotes line underground

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda ltem 7

‘ O‘ Highways Committee
E ’ 16 July 2013
Report from the Head of

B rent Transportation

For Information
Wards affected:

SUDBURY

Sudbury and Harrow Road Bus Stop Petition

1.0 Summary

1.1 Brent Council has received a petition signed by a group of residents in Sudbury
who are concerned about changes to bus stopping arrangements in the town
centre. The petition contained 235 signatures and has been verified by
Democratic Services.

1.2 The petitioners are asking for the restoration of a bus stop/stand at 786 Harrow
Road, opposite Sudbury and Harrow Road station, which was removed as part of
a major improvement scheme. The stop that they wish to be reinstated was
replaced by two new stops, one to the north near the Rugby Avenue junction and
a second close to Chiltern railway bridge (now known as at Sudbury and Harrow
Rd Station). Southbound bus services have been split between these two new
stops.

1.3  The plan in Appendix A illustrates the existing situation and shows bus routing,
the location of the original stops, and the locations of new stops that have been
introduced to replace them. Appendix B contains consultation plans for the
scheme that has recently been implemented.

1.4  Brent officers have reviewed the petition and determined that a reinstatement of
the original bus stop would remove the pay-and-display parking which replaced
the stop and was provided to increase short-term parking for the benefit of
shoppers. It would also have financial implications and would involve
amendments to a scheme that has very recently been implemented, and which

Hig?hways Committee Version no.3
16" July 2013 Date 05.06.13

Page 15



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

4.0

41

was extensively consulted over before construction with a majority in favour. In
addition, the impact of the changes made is not considered to be significant as
the new stop is located 100m south (less than 1 minutes walk) from the previous
stop location and accommodates all stopping services that pass through
Sudbury, as did the previous stop.

Recommendations
That member’s note the petition received from Sudbury residents.

That the request for reinstatement of the original bus stop at 786 Harrow Road be
rejected.

That Brent Council officers review the operation and stopping patterns of bus
services in Sudbury six months after scheme implementation to determine
whether there have been any notable impacts on punctuality or passenger
usage.

Content of Petition
The full wording of the petition is:

“Petition for the restoration of the Sudbury & Harrow Station Bus Stop to
its original location:

We the undersigned bus commuters of Sudbury, who have been greatly
disadvantaged by the relocation of the above mentioned bus stop without any
prior warning whatsoever to residents, wish to request the urgent review and
restoration of this bus stop to the position at which it stood - right outside
Wenzel’s The Bakers prior to the commencement of the most recent road works
— which provided us the use of this single stop for all four services, namely the
Route Numbers 18, 92, 182 and 245 towards Wembley and Alperton from this
one single pick up stop.

It is inconceivable that the interests of the thousands of bus commuters, which
include the old and the disabled and school children — who have used this crucial
bus stop daily for as long as they can remember — no find their basic travel
convenience so blatantly sacrificed, to accommodate a parking bay for a few
privileged motorists, who already enjoy near luxury parking facilities on both the
Harrow Road and Watford Road sides of Butler’'s Green, not to mention the
massive parking facility set up for them — right across the road — outside Sudbury
Supermarket’.

Detail

A £700k improvement scheme has recently been implemented in Sudbury town
centre, involving resurfacing of footways in high-quality paving, resurfacing of the
road and creation of new loading and parking bays on-street. New street furniture
has also been provided along with street trees and signing improvements.
Appendix B contains a plan of the improvement scheme that has been delivered.

Hig?hways Committee Version no.3
16" July 2013 Date 05.06.13

Page 16



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Sudbury town centre scheme was devised in 2010, at the time when
articulated single-deck buses (‘bendy-buses’) were due to be withdrawn from
service. The opportunity was therefore taken to review bus stand locations in
Sudbury town centre as part of the new scheme design.

A key design consideration was the lack of short-term customer parking in the
town centre. Traders were strongly in support of more short-stay parking and
loading facilities. As a result two loading bays were provided along with new
short-stay parking bays with pay and display parking facilities. These facilities
replaced some of the existing bus stops within the town centre, including the stop
that petitioners wish to be reinstated.

Brent officers consulted with London Buses and the Police during the design
phase of the scheme. It was decided to introduce two new southbound bus stops
to replace the single existing stop. Firstly, a bus stop was provided outside 818
Harrow Road and named Rugby Avenue (shown in Appendix A). London Buses
have allocated through services 92, 182 and 245 (towards Wembley and
Alperton respectively) to use this stop. A second new stop was introduced 100m
south of the old stop, near Chiltern railway bridge, and is officially named
‘Sudbury and Harrow Road station’. This stop was introduced to replace two bus
stops, one that was further south (nearer Barham Park) and the original stop
outside 786 Harrow Road (which the petitioners are requesting be reinstated).

The new Sudbury and Harrow Road station stop was proposed to rationalise
stopping patterns and free up space for parking and loading facilities within the
main town centre area. It has been allocated as the first southbound stop for the
Route 18 service and is also used by the 92, 182 and 245 through services.

Route 18 links Sudbury to Euston Station and is a very high-frequency service. It
carries 55,000 passengers on an average weekday (over 20 million per year). It
is therefore a very well used service. The petitioners are concerned that all
passengers approaching from the north of Sudbury are now required to walk
slightly further south through the town centre to reach the new Sudbury and
Harrow Road station stop. In addition, they feel that the environment beneath the
railway bridge is poor and that they have been marginalised as bus users.

The proposed scheme was consulted over between 22" March and 18" April
2011, with responses received from businesses and residents associations.
Overall the scheme was supported by 81% of respondents. Details of which bus
stops would be used by which buses were not confirmed by London Buses at
that time. However, the locations of proposed stops were indicated on
consultation plans and consultees were aware of the proposed relocation of
stops to their current locations.

During the consultation some concerns were raised over the combination of two
bus stops to the new location close to Chiltern Railway Bridge. Changes to bus
stop locations were discussed with London Buses and the Police and the
proposed new combined stop was considered to be the only viable alternative
location. The proposed scheme was therefore taken forward with majority
approval.

Hig?hways Committee Version no.3
16" July 2013 Date 05.06.13

Page 17



4.9

4.10

4.1

412

4.13

4.14

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

Transport for London (TfL) through its operating company London Bus Services
Limited (London Buses) is responsible for the planning and oversight of the
capital’s ‘red bus’ network. This includes the provision of infrastructure such as
stops and stands in conjunction with each London borough. London Buses
determine which routes call at stops as part of its route planning process.

Given the concerns expressed by the petitioners, officers have approached
London Buses and requested a review of the stopping pattern. We have
suggested that routes 92,182 and 245, which all call at stops a short distance
north of the Butlers Green roundabout, could stop at Sudbury and Harrow Road
station stop only so that Route18 services could use the Rugby Avenue stop
exclusively.

This suggestion has been rejected by London Buses as they state that “we have
reviewed the decisions made and believe that given the topological constraints
and the many conflicting interests on a relatively small amount of kerb space the
best outcome has been reached”. They go on to say that all stops are within
TfL’s guideline of 400m from the next joint stop for all routes. They therefore feel
that the first stop on the 18 route should be Sudbury and Harrow Road station,
which should continue to accommodate all services passing south through
Sudbury.

In summary, the improvement scheme in Sudbury has very recently been
implemented. It was subject to consultation before construction, as are all major
projects of this nature. The scheme was designed to improve the ambience and
viability of the town centre as well as catering for the conflicting requirements of
through traffic, traders, their customers, cyclists and public transport users. Road
safety has also been a major consideration. To re-instate the previous bus stop,
as petitioners are requesting, would involve changes to a scheme that has only
just been delivered, including removal of on-street parking and loading facilities.

This change has necessitated approximately 1 minutes additional walk time for
passengers, and is not therefore considered to be a major change from the
original situation. In conclusion, a reinstatement of the original stop is not
considered to be appropriate at this time.

It is proposed to allow a period of six months for the current bus routing and
stopping patterns to operate and “bed in” before a further review is undertaken.
Officers will then review the situation in conjunction with London Buses and
determine whether the current arrangement is acceptable for bus passengers
and other town centre users.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with this report. Further
investigations and consultations will be undertaken using in-house staff
resources.

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications associated with this report.

Hig?hways Committee Version no.3
16" July 2013 Date 05.06.13

Page 18



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

71

Diversity Implications

There are potential implications in terms of disabled groups, who may have been
impacted by the increased walk distance to the route 18 stop.

The additional walk distance is relatively modest at 100m and the footway
between the original and new bus stop (and throughout the town centre) has
been resurfaced as part of the scheme design. In addition, a raised junction and
entry treatment has been constructed across the walk route, which has created
an at-grade surface for wheelchair users and other mobility impaired pedestrians.

The impact on disabled persons is therefore considered to be partly mitigated by
this surfacing improvement work and entry treatment, and by other improvements
such as dropped kerb provision and tactile paving throughout the town centre.

Staffing/Accommodation Implications (if appropriate)
There are no significant staffing implications arising from this report.
Appendices

Appendix A — Layout plan
Appendix B — Sudbury Town Centre improvement scheme

Background Papers
Petition available on request

Contact Officers

Jim Lawman (Public Transport Liaison Officer)

Transportation Service, 2nd Floor West, Brent House, 349-357 High Road,
Wembley, Middlesex, HA2 8TT. Telephone: 020 8937 5113/88.

Email: transportation@brent.gov.uk

Any person wishing to inspect the above papers should contact Paul Chandler,
Head of Transportation, Transportation Service, Brent House, 349 High Road,
Wembley, Middlesex HA9 6BZ, paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk or telephone: 020
8937 5151.

Hig?hways Committee Version no.3
16" July 2013 Date 05.06.13

Page 19



Appendix A - Layout Plan

Em b EEEy

: 182 ¥
= 245 “*
n 92 Y emmanm 7'.\,'

PN\ ="a 4T
1 L\ L A0 0

L AL\ LY\% AR

AR EMA™ T\ A
a0\ e S e C
Fal N\ -~ o \ A
VAL ) e AN A A\
) - 1) W
\ o L oy 1% W
" i v A T

%

New Bus Stop
Rugby Avenue

Stop for:
92 182 245
18 does not stop

New Bus Stand
and stops

Stop for:

92 182 245

18 service set-
down and stand

e Ly B
vy

)

Old Bus Stop i
786 Harrow Road
(previously all
services)

. =)
Ay

P

.
|-' -
ga)

New Bus
Stop
Sudbury &
Harrow Road
Station

Stop for:
18 92 182 245

*
._':‘~-<_,4"-, ] .
fonud l 18 I “
Old Bus Stop 7‘
Barham Park
(all services) | )

Hi%hways Committee
16" July 2013

Page 20

Version no.3
Date 05.06.13



W DI Ry ] Mg g 4 e b ) G b iy g e
T ) (8 s A A B T e 8 e e S et ey s ey ey

e S32I4A S2UDUAIOW Joy papiresd m A(
POON MOLCH SHAOD |eAR| ADM3004 1B Ysnp m
¥ Angprg prey Bupod apnojyes omE.EoSEE. Wz
(soiouey snq i ou) urosaucy uoyois pasodoay M
£q pauspim puDis snq
pucys snq pasadoig fowyony SAowey wm ™
A0S 8NY pup Mol

dogs snq pescdosg Joyogs shq pib SpURs 8126
dois snq ancway

Anjus pesips ™
UBN . ulwgo |

posodosy

BT \X .a.
/
/

s snq puo
doys BNq anouley

Japys sng puo
doys snq pascdody

ol L

JRALORL

Agn poep X0
q auoyd
,_ozvo;-.os.._wﬁ pasodaly

Bussol

DSl §
1ogegs snq pup / v...xhﬂ :
dois snq esowoy wzz Ay pauspia Apmyooy
pouspin fDw3ooy A
v

Appendix B — Sudbury Town Centre

Improvement Scheme

wiod Sussoin
pareip Buluag.

T
_
|
|

i

»

VEISIon rno.o
Date 05.06.13

Page 21

ways Committee
July 2013

h

16%'

Hi



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 8

Highways Committee

(ﬁ Brent 16 July 2013

J Report from the Head of
Transportation

For Action Wards Affected:
Wembley Central and Tokyngton

Harrow Road — Businesses Petition for the Removal of CCTV
Enforcement.

1.0 Summary

1.1 This report informs the Committee of a petition received from local businesses in
the vicinity of the former Greyhound Public House on Harrow Road, Wembley,
requesting the removal of a CCTV enforcement camera situated between
Jesmond Avenue and Clifton Avenue.

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 That the Committee notes the contents of the petition, and the issues raised.

2.2 That the CCTV camera located between Jesmond Avenue and Clifton Avenue on
Harrow Road be retained.

2.3 That the Committee notes trader’s concerns in relation to loading activities and
instructs officers to proceed with the Option 2 scheme described in this report,
which will increase available space for loading activity and amend existing traffic
orders.

24 That the Committee notes that progress of this scheme will be subject to securing
capital funding through TfL, and that it will be subject to the outcomes of
stakeholder and public consultation.

24 That objections or representations to the informal and statutory consultation are
considered by the Head of Transportation under delegated authority, unless
significant or substantial objections are raised, which will be brought back to the

Committee.
Highways Committee Version 4
16" July 2013 Date 28/05/2013

Page 23



2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

That the main petitioner be informed of the outcome of the Highways Committee
decision in regard to this matter.

Details of Petition

A petition has been received by the Council from local businesses and residents of
Wembley Central and Tokyngton wards. The petition has 80 signatures and has
been verified in accordance with the council’s procedures.

The full wording of the petition is (sic):

“‘We, the undersigned, believe Brent Council should remove a camera, which is
situated between Jesmond and Clifton Avenue on Harrow Road. We find this as
grossly unfair on all local businesses and customers who can not park any where
without penalised by this particular camera. Local businesses have been given
parking fines without any due care and attention. It deters all potential customers
to shop and has caused enormous problem for local business to have their goods
delivered. We believe this unfair and unjust penalty charges handed out is levy on
Local Business and customer. Under difficult economic conditions, where all
businesses struggling to makes their ends meets. We demand this camera should
be removed at once. And all penalty charges cancelled. ”

A copy of the petition is available for inspection by Members of the Highways
Committee.

Background

Harrow Road is part of the borough’s Principal Classified (A Road) network and as
such is an important commercial route. The section of Harrow Road between
Waverley Avenue and Chatsworth Avenue is fronted by a mixture of shops and
restaurants on both sides of the road. Appendix A shows the existing situation in
this area.

On the easterly side of the road there is an extended bus lay-by, which serves the
high frequency 18 service (from Sudbury to Euston) along with a number of other
local services. The 18 is the busiest bus service in Brent, with a frequency of up to
24 buses per hour and passenger numbers exceeding 20 million per year (55,000
on average each weekday). The stop is protected by a bus stop clearway order
located within the lay-by, as shown in the location plan provided in Appendix A.

To the rear of the bus stop clearway, and within the lay-by, there is an 18m length
that is subject to waiting restrictions, but which can be used for loading and
unloading. Traders currently use this length of the lay-by for loading goods, and
this activity is legal and permissible.

There are a number of businesses that operate along the easterly length of the
road, including a taxi firm. There are, on occasions, conflicting loading needs for
these businesses and more than one loading vehicle can regularly arrive at the

Highways Committee Version 4
16" July 2013 Date 28/05/2013

Page 24



4.5

4.6

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

same time. As a result, loading vehicles and taxis encroach in to the bus stop and
sometimes stop for extended periods.

A CCTV camera located between Jesmond Avenue and Clifton Avenue is being
used for enforcement of waiting and loading restrictions and traders have received
a number of Penalty Charge Notices due to vehicles obstructing the bus stop.
They have therefore requested that the CCTV camera be removed.

On 5th February 2013, the leader of the Council, the lead member for Highways
and Transportation, and Council officers from Transportation and Safer Streets
(parking enforcement) met with the local traders on site to discuss their concerns.
The objective of the meeting was to gain an understanding of trader’s concerns,
review the existing waiting and loading restrictions and assess whether
improvements could be introduced to better serve the shops.

Request to Remove CCTV Enforcement

Consideration has been given to the petitioner's request to remove CCTV
enforcement and over-turn penalty charge notices. The CCTV camera at this
location was first introduced in 2005 when Brent adopted powers to enforce bus
lane contraventions under the London Local Authorities Act 1996. As a result,
during the past eight years of operation compliance rates in relation to the bus
lane have risen and fewer Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) were issued for
breaching the bus lane restrictions.

In 2011, Brent took on the responsibility of enforcing moving traffic contraventions
from the police and at the same time received authority to enforce parking
restrictions by means of CCTV. At that time, there had been a high rate of
indiscriminate parking at the bus stop. Enforcement by foot-duty Civil Enforcement
Officers failed to improve this problem. The CCTV camera was therefore used to
enforce parking restrictions and, as a result, non-compliance improved
considerably.

At the meeting with local businesses, officer's and members explained the need to
carry out enforcement along with the appeals process. They were informed that
Penalty charge notices (PCN’s) are reviewed on a case by case basis in
accordance with the requirements of the Traffic Management Act 2004 and, where
enforcement is found not to be reasonable, PCN’s may be cancelled.

As a result of the concerns raised, the enforcement team reviewed CCTV footage
of contraventions. The enforcement team found that in a small number of cases
the issued PCNs were found to be unreasonable and they were subsequently
cancelled. However, in the overwhelming majority of cases there was clear
contravention of the bus stop clearway and all PCNs issued for obstruction of the
bus stop have been maintained.

lllegal parking and loading in this location causes obstruction of a bus stop which
serves the highest frequency and busiest bus route in Brent. Keeping the bus stop

Highways Committee Version 4
16" July 2013 Date 28/05/2013

Page 25



5.6

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.0

clear of obstruction is very important to the effective and punctual operation of the
service. In addition, removing CCTV enforcement may send a clear message that
parking and loading could take place indiscriminately if enforcement officers were
not present on site a regular basis.

It is therefore concluded that it is not the method of enforcement that is at issue, or
which should be changed, but the extent of loading facilities in this area. It is
therefore recommended that the CCTV camera remain for enforcement purposes
with a view to retaining current compliance rates in the bus lane and bus stop.

Potential Extension of Loading Facilities

Following the meeting with local businesses on 5" February 2013, officers
reviewed existing loading restrictions and investigated options to increase the
extent of loading space available. Two options were considered.

Option 1 is shown in Appendix B. It involves creation of a new lay-by for loading
using a section of the footway outside the Greyhound Pub. The proposed bay
would be approximately 22m long by 2.4m wide. A 6.3m wide footway would still
be retained. Construction of this lay-by would require strengthening of the surface
and protection of underground equipment and access covers. In addition, existing
street furniture (bollards, trees, signs and posts etc) will need to be relocated and /
or removed from the site.

A second Option 2, shown in Appendix C, involves extending the length of the lay-
by that can be used for loading / unloading by shortening the length of the existing
bus cage. The current cage is longer than strictly required as it was previously
used by bendi-buses, which have now been withdrawn from service. However, to
ensure that double deck buses can pull into the stop and dock at the kerb without
obstruction, a narrow kerb extension will need to be built. The resulting loading
area would be extended to 28m, which would allow two 10m long goods vehicles
to comfortably stand.

The options described have been designed and modelled and would both operate
effectively whilst notably increasing the length of loading space available.

Costs to deliver Option 1 (a new lay-by) have been estimated at approximately
£14,000. However, utilities protection works are not included in this estimate and
these could more than double the estimated costs. Option 2 is estimated to cost
approximately £9,000. No utilities work is required for implementing this option.

Both options would improve the situation in terms of loading / unloading. However,
Option 2 is preferred as the additional loading space would be closer to the
businesses; will be less costly to implement and; will not result in utility company
work, which would further increase costs and could delay implementation.

Financial Implications

Highways Committee Version 4
16" July 2013 Date 28/05/2013

Page 26



71

7.2

7.3

7.0

8.0

Officers have previously approached TfL and secured £5,000 to prepare a
feasibility study and design.

Subject to the decision of the Highways Committee and the outcomes of informal
consultation, officers will request additional funding from TfL to implement the
scheme. Requirements for this project have been discussed with TfL at regular
liaison meetings and they have indicated their willingness to consider funding for
implementation as part of the bus stop improvement programme in Brent.

Funding would therefore be secured through TfL capital for both design and
implementation; therefore there are no implications on the Councils capital or
revenue budgets. However, the Committee should note that progress of the
proposed scheme is subject to agreement from TfL to allocate capital funding.

Legal Implications

Any changes identified and approved for implementation will require the
amendment of existing traffic regulation orders under the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984.

Diversity Implications

There are no equalities implications arising from this report. An equalities
assessment will be carried out following consultation.

Appendices

Appendix A — Existing situation
Appendix B — Design Option 1
Appendix C — Design Option 2

Background Papers
None

Contact Officers

Sandor Fazekas, Project Development Manager

Transportation Service, 2nd Floor West, Brent House, 349-357 High Road, Wembley,
Middlesex, HA2 8TT. Telephone: 020 8937 5113/88.

Email: transportation@brent.gov.uk

Highways Committee Version 4
16" July 2013 Date 28/05/2013

Page 27



Appendix A — Existing situation

ﬁ','.'l'..::: No loading or Brent
Mon - Sat b parking at any
KEY

8am - 6.30pm .
time

’5{9
7y .
/.O! At any time

"o St 1. Existing features are

Oe -.:'-;u'_:w» .
(04 shown in grey.
i 2. Existing restrictions
Area available are indicated by signs.
for loading
*
*
¢
/ ¢
<
e ¢
R B
4.30°6.300m P BUS Stop

Clearway
Preliminary Design

gz obed

Environment & Neighbourhood Services
Highway and Transport Delivery
Brent House, 349-357 High Road Wembley,
Middlesex, HA9 6BZ

/ London Borough of Brent
o .
time
buses

Job Title
Bus stop accesslbllity

*
Hay o Drawing Title
en Ful’ Exlsting features

.00 0.30am

230 6.30pm
Scale Designed SN

Drawn SN

Date created Checked HAH
6/5/13 Approved HAH
Drawing No. HD13b_1 Rev.

light.  Unauthorised reproductioninfringes Crown Copyright and may, lead to prosecution or civil proceedings,
CAD Ref.

Version 4

Highways Committee
Date 28/05/2013

16" July 2013



62 abed

Appendix B — Design Option 1

trengthen the pavement

move advertisement board and relocate|

Remove tree and replant

KEY
1. Proposed loading bay
on footway outside the
Greyhound pub.

2. All the dimensions
are [n metres.

PRELIMINARY DESIGN
Not to be used for
construction purposes

London Borough of Brent
Bnvironment & Neighbourhood Services
Highway and Transport Delivery
Brent House, 349-357 High Road Wembley,
Middlesex, HA9 6BZ

Job Title
Bus stop accessibility

Drawing Title
Proposed loading bay
outside Greyhound pub

OPTION 1
Scale Designed SN
Drawn SN
Date created Checked HAH
9/4/13 Approved HAH
Reproduced frem Ordnance Survey mepping dato wWIth the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Statfomery Office (c) Crown Copyright.  Uncutherlsed reproduction Infrfnges Crewn Copyright and may lead fo prosecution o civll preceedings. Drawing No. HD13b_2 Rev.
London Borough of Brenf, 100025260, 2011 ICAD Ref.

Highways Committee
16" July 2013

Version 4
Date 28/05/2013




0¢ abed

Appendix C — Design Option 2

C@ Brent

KEY

1. Proposed loading bay
OPTION -2

2. All the dimentions are
in metres

PRELIMINARY DESIGN
Not to be used for
construction purposes

London Borough of Brent
Environment & Neighbourhood Services
Highway and Transport Delivery
Brent House, 349-357 High Road Wembley,

Middlesex, HA9 6BZ

Job Title
Bus stop accessibility

Drawing Title
Proposed |oading bay
OPTION 2
Scale Designed SN
Drawn SN
Date created Checked HAH
9/4/13 Approved HAH
Repreduced from Ordnance Survey mopping dotc with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesky's StaFionery OFfice lc) Crown Copyright. UnaUthorised repreduction infringes Crown Cepyright and may lead to profecutien cor civil preceedings. Drawing No. HD13b_3 Rev.
Lendon Borough cf Erent, 100025260, 201 CAD Ref.

Highways Committee

Version 4
16" July 2013 Date 28/05/2013



Highways Committee Version 4
16™ July 2013 Date 28/05/2013

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Agenda ltem 9

Highways Committee
16 July 2013

) Brent

Report from the Head of
Transportation

Wards Affected:

For Action Tokyngton, Wembley Central,
Preston, Barnhill, Stonebridge,

Welsh Harp, Dudden Hill, Dollis Hill.

Improvement of vehicular and pedestrian signage in the
Wembley Area

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

20

2.1

Summary

This report informs the Committee of proposals from Quntain Estates and
Developments (Quintain) to fund the renewal and replacement of directional
signage on the approach routes to the new London Designer Outlet, opening in
October 2013.

It provides information on the new London Designer Outlet, a sign audit that
has been carried out, and proposals to improve both vehicular and directional
signage on the strategic routes to and also in the Wembley Regeneration area.

It also informs of Quintain’s proposals and application to Transport for London
(TfL) for renewing signage on the A406 North Circular Road, which forms part
of their Transport for London Road Network (TLRN).

Recommendations
That the Committee notes the contents of this report and agrees to:

1. The replacement and renewal of fixed directional road signing in the
Wembley regeneration area to include the new destination of the London
Designer Outlet, subject to compliance with Department for Transport (DfT)
standards and requirements of The Traffic Signs Regulations and General
Directions.

2. The introduction of Variable Message Signs to inform drivers of parking
locations and availability, subject to reaching a satisfactory legal agreement
for their ownership, management, maintenance and replacement.

Highways Committee Version 3
16" July 2013 03/06/2013

Page 33



2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

That the Committee delegates authority to the Head of Transportation to
approve and implement the proposals.

Background

Planning consent was granted in 2004 for the comprehensive redevelopment
of the Quintain Stage 1 area, comprising the land around Wembley Stadium
south of Engineers Way. This consent allowed approximately 500,000 square
metres of mixed used development, including the “London Designer Outlet”
shopping centre. Access to the development was considered within that
application and a specific number and location of car parking spaces were
approved together with measures to promote non-car access through a
comprehensive Travel Plan. Whilst it is envisaged that the vast majority of
visitors to the development and Stadium will travel via public transport, some
people will still choose travel by car. Appendix 1 identifies the boundaries of
the stage 1 development area and car parks that will be available for shopping
centre visitors.

The London Designer Outlet will open in October 2013 and will be the first
designer outlet centre within the M25. This important new visitor destination for
Wembley, anchored by Marks & Spencer, will comprise 85 shops, 15
restaurants and an 1800 seat Cineworld cinema. It is anticipated to provide
1500 new jobs and attract around 12 million visitors per annum. It will be the
closest outlet centre for 5.8 million people and; 10.4 million live within 60
minutes travel time.

Quintain are undertaking a number of local improvements to support the
opening of the London Designer Outlet (LDO), including creating a link
between Wembley Park and Wembley Stadium Stations for pedestrians and
cyclists, which will significantly improve access between the regeneration area
and the High Road. It is also delivering a new car park to replace the outdated
multi-storey car park on South Way.

To support the regeneration of the Wembley area, and the LDO, Quintain and
Council officers from Transportation and Planning have met regularly to
discuss proposed improvements, including customer access to these new
facilities and signage on approaches.

Detail

Proposals for improving signage and access were considered as a part of the
planning consent. A section 106 obligation to develop a signage strategy was
imposed on Quintain; this was submitted in 2006 and subsequently approved
by the Council. 17,066 person trips per weekday were anticipated in the
Transport Assessment to the retail elements of the Stage 1 development, with
the majority coming by public transport.

Highways Committee Version 3
16" July 2013 03/06/2013

Page 34



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

In the last several months Council officers and the Quintain development team
have collaboratively undertaken a comprehensive audit of fixed highway and
pedestrian signage. It was agreed that on the approaches to and within the
regeneration area, there is a need for new and amended signage to improve
wayfinding for vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists. As a result of the audit,
alterations to existing signage are recommended, including the use of the
words, ‘London Designer Outlet’ for reasons of legibility and ease of
wayfinding. Appendix 2 identifies the existing Wembley Estate and local
Highways signage.

Fixed signs will be designed to meet the Department for Transport standards
for signage and the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions. The
hierarchy for name places on the signs will follow the principle of the closest
destination marked first and the furthest away marked last. Appendix 3
identifies the proposed Wembley estate and local network signage. The final
location and designs are subject to agreement by the Council. Appendix 4
provides an example of the proposed new local signage.

Quintain has carried out an audit of the Council’s current pedestrian wayfinding
installations and they propose that they be consolidated and updated to show
the Civic Centre and the LDO (alongside other minor amendments). Details
and costs for this work are being finalised.

There is no specific requirement within the planning consent to deliver a
Variable Message Signage system. Nevertheless, Quintain has put forward
plans to install a suite of Variable Message Signs (VMS) to improve messaging
to drivers regarding availability of parking spaces and locations of the various
parking facilities The provision of the system is considered to be of significant
benefit to the operation of the road network as it will reduce circulation in the
area by guiding drivers directly to available parking spaces by the shortest
possible routes.

Quintain are proposing that nine VMS in total are installed to the east and west
of Wembley Stadium. Appendix 5 identifies the proposed locations of the VMS.
These will be linked wirelessly to car parking technology being installed by
Quintain in the red, yellow and green car parks and provide parking space
information. The signs will be managed by Quintain on non-event days to direct
drivers to available car parking; this will ease the movement of traffic in the
area. Management on Event Days can be switched simply to the Council’s
control room as required through wireless technology and a protocol will be
developed.

Quintain will procure a maintenance contract for the VMS signs from the
manufacturer as part of the initial acquisition cost. This service includes full
annual checks, faulty equipment repairs and servicing. The VMS solution has
been developed by Swarco who have had responsibility for major VMS
installations across the UK, including those at Westfield at White City in
London and the Trafford Centre in Manchester. Appendix 6 is an example of
the proposed VMS.

Highways Committee Version 3
16" July 2013 03/06/2013

Page 35



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Together, the new fixed highway signs and VMS will ease vehicle access to
the LDO and its car parks, support pedestrian wayfinding, reduce street clutter
and reduce congestion in the area.

The signage proposals have been developed in consultation with Wembley
National Stadium Limited (WNSL) and take full account of traffic routing on
Stadium Event Days. The routing strategy promotes access from the east via
Great Central Way although local access from the west is also supported.
Further consultation will be carried out with WNSL, the Police and local
residents and businesses in the close proximity of the new signage.

Quintain are proposing to meet the costs of updating and improving the
signage in the area, managing and maintaining the VMS signage, and
agreeing arrangements for replacing it at the end of its design life. The cost of
upgrading existing signage and installing VMS signage is estimated to be in
the region of £560,000. Approval for the installation of new signage and the
management, maintenance and replacement of the VMS will be subject to a
satisfactory legal agreement between the Council and Quintain.

Quintain have developed proposals and applied for renewing signage on the
A406 North Circular Road (with the Councils support), which is managed by
TfL. Quintain are in on-going discussions with TfL and will meet the costs
estimated at circa £120,000.

The works on the public highway would be carried out by the Council's
contractor, Conway AECOM and supply and installation of the VMS (by
Swarco to Quitains requirements), to the Council’s order. The signage on the
public highway will be owned by the Council following installation and subject
to a legal agreement for management, maintenance and replacement
arrangements for the VMS. Installations on the A406 North Circular Road
would be installed by TfL on agreement.

Opportunities have, and will continue to be sought, to rationalise and minimise
street clutter by combining signs into new assembly’s as part of the
replacement / renewal programme.

Financial Implications

The cost of installing all the signage proposed by Quintain will be met by them
in full.

The cost of the fixed signs on the local public highway is estimated in the
region of £184,000, the VMS circa £255,000 (c£155,000 for the signs,
c£100,000 for engineering and enabling work).

The cost of installing the signage proposed on the A406 North Circular Road
(subject to their approval) is estimated at £122,000

Highways Committee Version 3
16" July 2013 03/06/2013

Page 36



6.4

6.5

6.6

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0

Quintain estimates that supporting the car park technology on their land will
cost an additional £1.1 million.

There are no financial implications on the Councils capital and revenue
budgets. Staff costs relating to consultation, approvals and managing
installation of the signs will be met from existing budgets.

Quintain will cover all costs of preparing for Council approval, and executing
the legal agreement and also all relevant accompanying scheme management
schedules.

Legal Implications

Any changes identified and approved by the Council for implementation will
meet the requirements of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and the
Department for Transport produced Traffic Signs Regulations and General
Directions 2002.

Section 65 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 enables Brent to cause or
permit traffic signs to be placed on or near a road, subject to and in conformity
with such general directions as may be given by the Ministers acting jointly or
such other directions as may be given by the Secretary of State.

Advertisement consent is not required for any traffic signs as defined by
Section 64(1) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 as these signs are
excluded from direct control with the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

Diversity Implications

There are no equalities implications arising from this report. An equalities
assessment will be carried out following local informal consultation after
agreeing the final design.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - London Designer Outlet and Wembley Parking
Appendix 2 - Existing Wembley Estate and Local Highway Signage
Appendix 3 - Proposed Wembley Estate and Local Highway Signage
Appendix 4 - Example of Local Highway Signage

Appendix 5 - Proposed VMS Location Plan

Appendix 6 - Example of VMS Signage

Background Papers

Wembley Master Plan 2013

Circulation drawings for principal routes
Circulation drawings for stadium event days
Wembley area sign audit

Highways Committee Version 3
16" July 2013 03/06/2013

Page 37



Plans of proposed improvements on the A406 North Circular Road

Contact Officers

Sandor Fazekas, Project Development Manager, Highways and Traffic.
Transportation Service, 2nd Floor West, Brent House, 349-357 High Road,
Wembley, Middlesex, HA9 6BZ. Telephone: 020 8937 5113/88. Email:
transportation@brent.gov.uk

Highways Committee Version 3
16" July 2013 03/06/2013

Page 38



€10¢2/90/€0
€ UoISIap

¢Loz Ainr 91
a9)IWIWoD w>m>>cw__._

Bupjied mojaA

Bunjied ussun

supjied pay

12130 48uBISag UopUOT]
RN

‘ 934 90 -
NV1d 3LISOdWOD

-

=

=5 VMVV/”/V/.¢¢///

F— e
— ey |

e |

.,,.u‘
o] f
1! ’A
e ol

—

€10z xuvnugad 90 L
NV1d¥3LS

Asepunoq diysisumo sututeway
V1D UM 3INJuaA jutor

spue] 7 98e3s

spueT | agejs

HEN

P
J. LISOAWOD € L 3 Fiae S

NVId 3LISOdWOD
YW ATTGWIM

-

g

\ £
1 O]

v
o
S

/:

— //

NN
SN

M//MVV,/W./V///

sujed AS1quisp pue 3913nQ Jausdisag uopuo - | Xipuaddy

D

W= Vay,

Page 39



€102/90/€0
€ UOISIaN

¢Loz Ainr 9
aapIwwo) sAemybiH

: .
) ..

S|
",

1§ S

o
. \.ls .\. ... ,—J,_ e
ol e Y A :
] o Y .. . e
o A\M&,r»;df { 2
Bl
° - SWA 03 paepdn ag 03 suSis ,0.\
LR
» - paiepdn aqg o1 suBig |
] paBuBYIUN UIRWSS 0] SUBIS . .
o paNeIsuy ag 07 suBis | . w.«.,
& A
FON
b N -
n pPasoWal ag 0] suslg W.#

Page 40

‘\7

x@
ﬁ.ﬂ/ >

98eusis AemysiH 1207 pue 91e)s3 A9|quiap Sullsix3 - Z xipuaddy




€102/90/€0
€ UOISIoN

€Loz Ainr 91
s9iwwo) w>m>>cw__._

SWA 03 pajepdn ag o3 suBig
patepdn ag 01 SudiS

Page 41

98eusls AemysiH 1207 pue a31e1s3 A91quiap pasodold - € xipuaddy



€102/90/€0
€ UOISIaN

¢Loz Ainr 91
29)ILIW0D w>m>>cw__._

7107 Jaquaidas juawniog asuepins Jad sy
juendwodeg SSHN

paroiddy adA) AduaBy shkemysiy

juendwo) Jwin

w-bsygg Dauy Zv3 Ss0|D |D14330
W5 067 1yo1aH »ovia Iepiog
wWwesze 1P AlIHM puncibyong
30v4d NOIS MOVI8  JInoed 4a}3en

0001 1YdIay— x, [ODH1 @2u84eiey ubIS
193 oWl yos

um_u:Oh@cu_mmn_IV ,,

uopuon :
died A1quIapn
231e}so Jeli3snpuj

Aoy jied
Asjquiapp

(VW ..O.V_)_v

1S3AM SUL

98eusls AemysiH 1e207 jo a1dwex3] - ¢ xipuaddy



€102/90/€0 €10z Ainp z%r

€ UOISIoN aapIwwo) sAemybiH




€102/90/€0
€ UOISIaN

QON\A_:?&
29)ILIW0D m>m>>sw__._

uollepunos pue 3sod Suipn)outl uollejjelsul
7X000°623 D

1s0d auo uo palaAallued aq 0] susis
SH¥dO UOIIBDIUNWIWOY)

wwigL YSIay Ja3deiey)

49quly 1n0jo) a3

paroiddy adA| AoualBy shemysiH
juendwo) JWIN

&3

X

£

!
e X

\\ (254

Page 44

%
—

_III-III""""“"

(Hny )
@ a&%%ﬁ
{ Fi- g

98eusIS SWA Jo 91dwex3 - 9 xipuaddy

5[4 ¢ele




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Crossrail / HS2 / Old Oak Common planning update
	7 Sudbury and Harrow Road Bus Stop Petition
	8 Wembley High Road - Business Petition to remove CCTV enforcement
	9 Improvement of vehicular and pedestrian signage in the Wembley area

